MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS
November 13, 2025– Town Board Meeting – 6:00pm
[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]A Town Board Meeting was held Thursday, November 13, 2025 at 6:00pm at Town Hall, 18 Russell Avenue, Ravena, New York 

PRESENT:		Stephen Donnelly, Supervisor
			Michael J. Stott, Deputy Supervisor
			Linda S. Bruno, Council Member
			Stephen J. Schmitt, Council Member
			Ronald Hotaling, Council Member
			
					 
ALSO PRESENT: 	Candace McHugh, Town Clerk
Richard C. Reilly, Town Attorney
		 

Supervisor Donnelly called the meeting to order and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Supervisor Donnelly asked that the record reflect that all members were present 

** The first 14 minutes of the meeting were not shown on the video feed. Below is a transcript of what took place during that time. **
Supervisor: Good evening, everyone. I convene this meeting of the Town Board of Town of Coeymans, if you'll join me for the pledge. Okay. I can show that all the Town Board members are here tonight and we'll get into the public hearing. I make a motion to open a public hearing.
Stott: I second that.
Donnelly: All in favor? 
Aye.
Town Clerk: Notice is hereby given that the Town Board of the Town of Coeymans will meet and hold a public hearing at Town Hall 18 Russell Ave, Ravena, New York at 6 p.m. on Thursday, November 13, 2025 for the purpose of hearing comments on the following. The Town Board of the Town of Coeymans is considering adoption of a local law entitled Proposed Local Law Number One of the Year 2025 to amend Town Code Chapter 165 Zoning Section 165-3 entitled definitions to add a new definition for agricultural related transportation terminal and to clarify that such agriculture related transportation terminal is permitted as an accessory use in the residential and agricultural RA district. A copy of the law is available in the Town Clerk's Office 18 Russell Ave, Ravena, New York where it may be viewed and a copy can be obtained during regular business hours.
At the above date and time and place all interested persons are welcome to attend and will be heard. By order of the Town of Coeymans Town Board, Candace McHugh Town Clerk. 

Mrs. Tanner: Why wasn't this publicized? I'm sure nobody in town knows about the meeting tonight or this law. I mean I come to all the meetings I don't know anything about it.
Donnelly: Well Candace, was it posted and put in the paper? It was put on our town website. 
Town Clerk: You actually had to do a resolution of motion here for me to do so. So yeah, it's there. It was on the board, it's on the website, it's on Facebook. I put a reminder out today and Times Union.
Mrs. Tanner: Do you know how many seniors don't have computers? They don't have that information. You know the village has that sign; you could have put it up on that sign. I just don't think it's right, this is not, 1% of the townspeople.
Schmitt: Was the draft of the local law put on the website?
Town Clerk: No but in the public notice it says in the bottom line a draft can be obtained here. And some people did come get a draft. 
Donnelly: Any other comments? 
Jeff Lukens: I just started reading it, I'm not even sure if somebody just called me and said I should come down. Back when Larry was first a building inspector, myself, Jimmy Pietropaoli and about 50 other businesses were brought down. We were sent a letter saying we had illegal businesses. I don't know what happened with everyone else. I know my business, they said oh well you're an accessory use of the farm. So, I'm assuming that still stands that way. And I was wondering why did this come up? Why is this being brought up? Somebody bring it up or is there a reason to waste it? Is there a good reason to bring it up?
Stott: So, Mr. Lukens, in 2020, the town board at the time, they defined two terms that were in the zoning code. They defined a transfer station and a transportation terminal.
Now these terms were in the code, but they put a definition to them. So, and again, if you look at the meeting in which they did this, I believe Mr. Beers had purchased the land adjacent or across the street from the Port of Coeymans and he was looking to possibly put a transfer station, recycling center type thing there. So, they defined a transfer station and also a transportation terminal to sort of, you know, clean up some of the muddy water possibly. And they defined the transportation terminal as follows. They defined it as a railway terminal, a freight station, container terminal or a yard, multi-purpose cargo terminal, a port, a transfer station or any similar receiving point. So, they did this and I think their intention was to change the or define it in the industrial zones because transportation terminal is located in three industrial zones. The I-1, the I-2 and the I-3. And they're all in the primary use of those industrial zones. So, as you read it, in my opinion, it sounds very industrial nature. So that would be applicable. I believe what they didn't realize is the term transportation terminal is also in the, and I think this is what you probably have, is also in the accessory use of agricultural zoning.  I think they inadvertently tried to just do it in industrial and maybe they forgot it was also involved in the agricultural zone. So now there's a one-size-fits-all sort of terminology for a transportation terminal. So that's the first thing. And again, we'll probably go into a little bit later, but when you look at the town code and you look at like the accessory use, like obviously, you know, the accessory use of something should be subordinate to the primary use. And when you look at like the primary uses for agricultural zoning, I think that that term I just listed to you, a railway terminal, a port, a transfer station, I think that sort of supersedes the primary use, which is stuff for agriculture. So, we are just simply trying to look at and see if we want to, of course, keep that terminology for the three industrial zones, but change the transportation terminal in the accessory use of the agricultural zone to represent something more in line with what that zone is primary use for, which is agricultural product production and use. So again, I think it was not done intentionally, but nonetheless, I think it should be corrected. So that's sort of answer and clear up some questions. 
Jeff Lukens: I understand, I understand what you're saying, yes. Okay. But I don't understand how we, generations after generations, we change the laws. Because back in the, I think it was 92, when I had to get approved as an accessory use to an agriculture operation, it was a bagged transportation terminal. And all those things you just listed, if I was putting cows on trains or horses on trains, I was allowed to do it. If I was going, you know, farms have trucks to operate, and some farms, they use their trucks to bring in their crops. Well, the rest of the year, they might want to haul freight. They might want to I think that's where the word transportation terminal started from. I think they were allowed to haul gasoline, freight. I think it started so farmers could justify the cost of their expensive equipment.
Stott: I agree.
Mr. Lukens: And that's just my opinion, and that's how I took it years ago. Yes, and I agree, but I think you would also agree that, you know, when it was not defined, the transportation terminal, it was being used on your agricultural land for agricultural purposes to help you, you know, sort of be self-sufficient in your farming or agricultural needs. 
Stott: Okay, yeah. So, we're trying, you know, when it was defined for the same definition for three industrial zones, and then that same definition is now applicable to agricultural zones, I think there should be a distinction between a transportation terminal that is for industrial use and one that is for agricultural use. Absolutely. And that's all we're doing. We're just changing, you know, we're looking to possibly change the one agricultural transportation terminal definition to something more in line with agricultural-based products. That's all. 
Schmitt: And I disagree with that, you know. I disagree with the change in this because I think maybe you, Mr. Lukens, maybe you may not be affected by this change because they may see your business as agricultural-related, but there are other businesses in the town of Coeymans that do operate in the RA district that aren't necessarily agriculture in nature. And I think that by making this change, I think it restricts those individuals and those business owners from potentially having the same opportunity that they had and that they've had for the last 30 plus years.
Mr. Lukens: I am just thinking about it. I know farmers out west, they have fuel oil companies, they have dump trucks, they have excavation stuff, which is all backs their farm farming operation. They get their own fuel from the port. They also sell fuel to people because that justifies having the fuel oil truck or the dump trucks or the excavators.
I just always, I hate to see the ag industry being limited and that's why I came down. Thank you both very much.
Dan Baker: Good evening, Danny Baker. Was this proposed change recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board?
Stott: It was recommended by our attorney.
Baker: So, it wasn't recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board. 
Stott: Is that something that they usually, that usually happens?
Bruno: It would go to them eventually. 
Stott: Well yeah, it would go to them eventually.
Schmitt: from my experience on being the chair of the Zoning Board and being the chair of both boards, you know, if I had heard through the grapevine or if I had seen that this proposal was on the table, you know, I definitely would, would have an opinion as to it and if I thought along the way that something like this was warranted, I certainly would reach out to either the liaison for the Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals or to the town board directly to say, you know, I think that a change is warranted.
Stott: And did somebody reach out in 2020 to the Zoning Board chair?
Schmitt: I was on the, I was the chair in 2020. And did... I'm sorry, no, I was the, yeah, I was the chair in 2020. 
Stott: Were you? Did they reach out to you? 
Schmitt: No. No. Oh. But nor did I reach out to them. Yeah, so the question is, was this, you know, brought by the Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals? And it wasn't. 
Donnelly: The answer is, it came from a legal perspective.
Baker: And does this qualify as a type 1 or type 2 fee correction? 
Mr. Reilly: Type 1. Type 1. That's the formal environmental assessment form. In fact, it should have been a type 1 in 2020, but they didn't do it that way. 
Baker: Again, I don't want to go back, right, if it was, if it was wrong in 2020, that we don't need two wrongs to make it right, right? So Let's leave all that stuff in the past, right? Sure. I mean, let's, we're just throwing darts, right? Hey, well, you did it in 2020. Let's just leave that alone, right? I mean, does that...
 Donnelly: Well, we're trying to correct... 
Baker: No, he's stating what a board did in 2020.
Mr. Reilly: I'm not trying to throw darts, but I would note that if you look at the entirety of the minutes, if you look at the, at the local law that was adopted in the context of the comprehensive plan, the best interpretation of it is that it was a clear mistake. 
Baker: Again, that's, yeah, everybody's entitled to their opinion, and I respect yours. Yeah, Stott: Dan, I'm not blaming anybody. We're saying, this is what happened, should we fix it.
Baker: I just want to know if it was, if it was talked about to the Planning and Zoning, and if it was recommended to you guys to make this change from them, because they're the ones that have to deal with this, right?
Schmitt:  And again, I don't know that it was an error in 2020, you know, because just because they potentially or allegedly might not have seen the fact that transportation terminal is listed as an accessory use in the RA district, I mean, I think there's reason for it to be there, and we have business owners here tonight that support the fact that it's there as an accessory use.
The video picks up from this point and can be found at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=73Dk3yjIgDg&t=5s

Announcements:
· RCSCSD Thanksgiving Recess 11/26/25-11/28/25
· Town of Coeymans Offices Closed 11/27/25-11/28/25
· 
Approval of Minutes:  The following minutes were approved:

-October 16, 2025 Town Board Workshop
-October 23, 2025 Meeting Town Board Minutes
-October 23, 2025 Public Hearing on 2026 Budget

Supervisor Donnelly made a motion to accept the minutes for October 16 and 23, 2025 Town Board Meeting, Workshop and Hearing, Council member Stott seconded the motion.
APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – ABSENT – ABSTAIN - SO MOVED
Old Business:
Separation of the PB/ZBA- Supervisor Donnelly asked the board if they would like to revisit the possibility of splitting the boards. Council member Stott stated he can see the pros and cons of both. Planning Chairwoman Patricia Grogan respectfully asked for the board to speak to the PB/ZBA about this. The number one thing is it does expedite to process for the public by having a joint board.  Council member Schmitt Suggested a workshop with the PB/ZBA to discuss this. Supervisor Donnelly asked if it would be better to separate the boards if we looked at a comprehensive zoning plan. Council member Schmitt has seen it both ways, but feels you have to have the right people in place. 
New Business:
250 Celebration- Supervisor Donnelly is looking to pull a committee together to starts a 250 Celebration Committee.

Resolution # 147-25 2025 Water Re-levy
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	



	I, Council member Hotaling offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

	WHEREAS, the last day to collect Water Rents was October 24, 2025, and any rents unpaid are to be levied on the 2026 Property Taxes; and  
	WHEREAS, the Albany County Director of Finance has requested verification of unpaid Water Rents from the Town Board, ensuring the correct amount to be placed on the Tax Warrant.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the total amount of uncollected Water Rents to be levied to the 2026 Property Tax Warrant is $31,899.04, which is a base amount of $30,597.39 plus $1,301.65 in penalties.  
	Seconded by Council member Stott, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Resolution # 148-25 2025 Sewer Re-Levy
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	



	I, Council member Stott offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

	WHEREAS, the last day to collect for Sewer Rents was October 24, 2025, and any rents unpaid are to be levied on the 2026 Property Taxes; and
	WHEREAS, the Albany County Director of Finance has requested verification of unpaid Sewer Rents from the Town Board, ensuring the correct amount to be place on the Tax Warrant.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the total amount of uncollected Sewer Rents to be levied to the 2026 Property Tax Warrant is $38,199.93, which is a base amount of $34,799.47 plus $3,400.46 in penalties.
	Seconded by Council member Donnelly, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.


Resolution # 149-25 Adoption of 2026 Budget
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☐	☒	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☐	☒	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	3
	2
	


	I, Council member  Donnelly offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

	WHEREAS, the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Town of Coeymans prepared and submitted a Tentative Budget for the year 2026 on September 25, 2025; and

	WHEREAS, the Town Board (the “Board”) of the Town of Coeymans has solicited feedback on the 2026 Budget from the Town of Coeymans Department Heads, and has discussed the 2026 Tentative Budget with the Department Heads on September 3, 2025 and September 15, 2025; and 

	WHEREAS, the Town Board made changes to the 2026 Tentative Budget based on those discussions, and prepared and submitted a Preliminary Budget on October 9, 2025, to the Town Clerk; and 

	WHEREAS, a Public Hearing on the Preliminary Budget was held on October 23, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at Coeymans Town Hall, 18 Russell Avenue, Ravena, New York 12143, and all interested parties were heard.

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Coeymans does hereby accept the Preliminary 2026 Budget as the Adopted Budget for the year 2026.

	Seconded by Council member Stott, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Discussion: Council member Schmitt stated he does not agree that the town is going to bond half of the expenses of the plow truck, he does not agree with the amount in the attorney budget line or the website line. He also does not agree with the sewer line not having an increase for repairs.  The Town Clerk asked for clarification on the issue regarding the clerical error made in the Deputy Clerk’s pay.  Council member Stott stated he will reach out and communicate about this and get back to the town clerk the following day. 

Resolution # 150-25 Authorize Budget Transfers
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	



I, Council member Schmitt  offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

WHEREAS, the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Town of Coeymans has determined that in order to maintain proper balances within various accounts, an inter-fund transfer is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Coeymans does hereby authorize Supervisor Stephen Donnelly to transfer the funds as depicted below for the Budget Year 2025:

General Fund (A)

Amount		From Account			To Account

$6,500.00		(A) 1990.4 Contingency		(A) 8090.4 
		Environmental Control – 
		Leachate Contractual

$20,000.00		(A) 1990.4 Contingency 		(A) 1420.4 Attorney
								Contractual  

$  5,000.00		(A) 1990.4 Contingency 		(A) 1355.4 Assessor
								Contractual 

$  4,000.00		(A) 1990.4 Contingency 		(A) 1220.4 Supervisor
								Contractual 

$   450.00 		(A) 1990.4 Contingency 		(A) 7270.4 Band Concert
								Contractual 

Seconded by Council member Bruno, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Discussion: Council member Schmitt discussed these transfers with the business offices and read the current balances for each. The contingency balance after these transactions is approximately $61,000.  Supervisor Donnelly stated contingency is for the cross leveling of accounts at the end of the year.

Resolution # 151-25 Budget Amendments
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	



	I, Council member Bruno offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

	WHEREAS, the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Town of Coeymans has determined that in order to maintain proper balances within various accounts, an amendment to the 2025 Budget is necessary.

	NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Coeymans does hereby authorize Supervisor Stephen Donnelly to amend the 2025 Budget, as depicted below, for the Budget year 2025:

	Increase Appropriations 

	(SS) 8120.4 Sewage Collection System Cont. 				$60,000.00
	(SS) 9050.8 Unemployment 							$  6,048.00
	(SS) 9040.8 Workers Comp. 							$  2,261.75

	Increase Appropriated Fund Balance 

	(SS) 0599 Fund Balance 							$68,309.75

	Seconded by Council member Hotaling, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Resolution # 152-25 9W Work Order Change
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	


	I, Council member Hotaling offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

	WHEREAS, the Town Board (the “Board”) of the Town of Coeymans recently purchased real property located at 2524 U.S. Route 9W, Ravena, New York (the “Property”), to allow for the relocation of Town Hall offices to a suitable location that provides adequate space and public access (the “Project”); and 
	WHEREAS, the Board, by Resolution #127-25, accepted a bid to complete renovations related to the Project from AOW Construction, LLC, in the amount of $205,668.00 (the “Capital Project Cost”); and 
	WHEREAS, it has been determined that additional information technology work will benefit the Town and make individual offices more functional; and
	WHEREAS, to complete the additional information technology data work, AOW Construction, LLC and its subcontractors have indicated that a Change Order is necessary; and 
	WHEREAS, the Town has received a proposed Change Order from AOW Construction, LLC, in the amount of $20,237.80, to reflect the cost of the additional installations, such Change Order being attached hereto and made a part hereof; and
	WHEREAS, the Town, having originally transferred $250,00.00 to the 9W Renovation Capital Fund, has sufficient funds in such Capital Fund to cover the Change Order in its entirety.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
	  The Town Board of the Town of Coeymans hereby accepts the attached Change Order received from AOW Construction, LLC in the amount of $20,237.80.
	2.  The Town Board of the Town of Coeymans hereby authorizes such Change Order to be paid for using funds from the established H-50 9W Renovation Capital Fund.
	3.  The Town Board of the Town of Coeymans hereby authorizes Supervisor Stephen Donnelly to sign the Change Order on behalf of the Town and take such further actions as my be necessary in the acceptance of the Change Order.
	Seconded by Council member Stott, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Discussion: Council member Schmitt asked why this is just being brought up. Supervisor Donnelly stated the building did not have enough ports so more needed to be added. Changes in furniture configuration has led to some necessary changes.
Resolution # 154-25 Budget Amendment
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☒	☐	☒	☐	☐
	Total
	5
	
	5
	
	



I, Council member Stott  offer the following resolution and move its adoption:

WHEREAS, the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Town of Coeymans has determined that in order to maintain proper balances within various accounts, an amendment to the 2025 Budget is necessary.
WHEREAS, that the Town Board of the Town of Coeymans does hereby authorize Supervisor Stephen Donnelly to amend the 2025 Budget, as depicted below, for the Budget year 2025:
Increase Appropriations
(B) 9060.8 Health and Medical Insurance			$1,895.15

Increase Appropriated Fund Balance
(B) 0599 Fund Balance					$1,895.15
Seconded by Council member Donnelly, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.

Resolution # 153-25 Site Plan Review- TABLED
	
	Present
	Absent
	Aye
	Nay
	Abstain

	Stephen Donnelly
	☐	☐	☐	☐	☐
	Linda S. Bruno
	☐	☐	☐	☐	☐
	Stephen J. Schmitt
	☐	☐	☐	☐	☐
	Ronald J. Hotaling
	☐	☐	☐	☐	☐
	Michael J. Stott
	☐	☐	☐	☐	☐
	Total
	
	
	
	
	


	I, Council member _________________ offer the following resolution and move its adoption:
	WHEREAS, Column 18 of Attachment 5 (“Schedule of District Zoning Regulations”) to Chapter 165 (the “Zoning Code”) of the Town Code of the Town of Coeymans (the “Town”) contains historical language suggesting that Site Plan Review by the Planning Board/Zoning Board of Appeals (“Planning Board/ZBA”) is not required for “[P]rincipal [U]ses” in the Town’s Industrial (I-1 and I-2) zoning districts; and
	WHEREAS, the Principal Uses in the Town’s Industrial (I-1 and I-2) zoning districts include major industrial uses that can have significant impacts on nearby properties and the community as a whole—such as “[q]uarrying and extraction operations;” “[m]anufacturing, assembly and processing facilities;” “[w]holesaling with storage;” “[t]ransportation terminals;” “[b]uilding material plants;” and “[t]rucking terminals;” and
	WHEREAS, by Local Law No. 1 for 2011 (the “Site Plan Review Law”) the Town enacted Chapter 136 to the Town Code, providing for Site Plan Review of certain projects; and
	WHEREAS, the purpose of the Town’s Site Plan Review Law was to:
A.	Achieve efficient use of the land.
B.	Protect natural, archaeological and historical resources.
C.	 Provide a consistent and uniform method of review of certain proposed use(s) and development plans.
D.	Ascertain that any significant redevelopment complies with current standards.
E.	Review adverse impact on adjoining or nearby properties.
F.	Retain rural and natural resources with a clean and attractive environment as well as continued development of the economy of the town and the general welfare of its inhabitants.
G.	Conform to the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning requirements, as amended, of the Town of Coeymans.
H.	Create an accurate record of approved development.

(Site Plan Review Law § 136-3)
	WHEREAS, in addition to all other applicable laws, the Site Plan Review Law requires that the Planning Board/ZBA shall consider the following when reviewing a Site Plan Review Application:
A.	Traffic patterns (ingress and egress)
B.	Pedestrian safety and access.
C.	Parking and loading areas.
D.	Screening and landscaping.
E.	Environmental air quality.
F.	Fire protection equipment.
G.	Drainage/stormwater runoff.
H.	Refuse disposal.
I.	Location and placement of signs.
J.	Location and dimension of buildings
K.	Impact of the Proposed use on adjacent land uses.
L.	Snow removal.
M.	Location design and all construction materials of all utilities, energy and communications distribution facilities including gas, solar, wind energy, telephone, cable, water and sewer.
N.	Impact of the proposed use on both on-site and off-site infrastructure.
O.	Effects of smoke, noise, glare, vibration, odors and/or other noxious and offensive conditions, if any.
P.	Effects on historical properties listed on the national, state or historical registers, if any.
Q.	Effects of other cultural, archaeological and historical resources of the Town, if any.

(Site Plan Review Law § 136-6)
	WHEREAS, Site Plan Review is expressly required for the “construction of any new structures, development of any new use(s), and all other building or development activities,” (see, Site Plan Review Law § 136-4(A)); and
	WHEREAS, Site Plan Review is also required “for the expansion of any existing use;” with “expansion” including, but not being limited to “a floor space increase of 25% or more within any one-year period, or the introduction of new materials or processes not previously associated with the existing use,” (see, Site Plan Review Law § 136-4(B)); and
	WHEREAS, the Site Plan Review Law contains an express “Repealer Provision,” making clear that in “the event that any provision of any other Town of Coeymans local law, ordinance, or regulation [was] in conflict with” the Site Plan Review Law, those provisions were repealed, (see, Site Plan Review Law § 136-14).
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows:
	  The Town Board of the Town of Coeymans directs that to avoid confusion concerning the Town’s Zoning Code and Site Plan Review Law a clean version of Schedule F to the Zoning Code be prepared that is consistent with § 136-14 of the Site Plan Review Law.
	  The Town Board further directs the Town’s Building Inspector, who is “charged with the general and executive administration of” the Zoning Code (see, Zoning Code §135-12(A)), to work with the Town Attorney and/or Planning Board/ZBA Attorney to determine if any projects requiring Site Plan Review since 2011 have not received necessary approval(s) from the Planning Board/ZBA.
	  Upon a determination that a project requiring Site Plan Review has not received necessary approval(s) from the Planning Board/ZBA, the Town Board encourages the Building Inspector to refer the project to the Planning Board/ZBA for same.
	  In the event the Site Plan Review Law is not complied with in connection with a particular project, the Town Board directs the appropriate Town official(s) to notify the Town Board of same so that it can take any necessary action(s) to protect the health, safety and welfare of the Town.
	Seconded by Council member _________________, offered for discussion and duly put to a vote, the results of which appear above.


Discussion: 
Stott: Mr. Reilly you've done some research on this do you want to just help us explain exactly the process of how we got here.
Mr. Reilly: Sure, this originated from conversations that I had with code enforcement officer where he expressed questions or uncertainty about his ability to call for site plan review in the context of principal uses in the industrial zone which as you know are some of the most intensive uses in the community. Based on those discussions I did some review of the history of that language in the code as well as the site plan review language and the site plan review law that was adopted in 2011. I've reviewed both that law as well as the minutes associated with the adoption of that law and it was pretty clear that the purpose of the law and the discussion at the time was that it would in fact allow for site plan review of those principal uses in the industrial zone. It contained a repealer clause but for whatever reason the schedule itself didn't actually get cleaned up which caused some confusion and so this is an attempt to work with Jason and I spoke with Mr. Keniry today, to try and identify are there uses that should have come in for site plan review that have not.
Mr. Laraway: But you're changing the law as currently written and presented to the public that resolution says negotiate a clean version to be prepared or something to that affect, correct?
Mr. Reilly: I mean as a matter of law that happened back in 2011.
Mr. Laraway: But you can't change the law by resolution. 
Mr. Reilly: They did it back in 2011.
Mr. Laraway:  But you can't change the law by resolution.
Mr. Reilly:  I would take the position that we're not actually changing the law that that happened back in 2011.
Mr. Laraway: But the law as written will change you are changing the law by resolution.
Mr. Reilly:  I disagree with that characterization. 
Mr. Laraway: I agree with the characterization. I'm not a lawyer but you're changing the law. That resolution changes the law.
Mrs. Grogan: Do you have an extra copy right now on hand because just I mean as so chairwoman of the…
Schmitt:  So, I have so this being a town board discussion I have some issues with regards to how the resolution is written. It says the town board of the town of Coeymans directs that to avoid confusion concerning the town zoning code and site plan review law a clean version of the schedule as to the zoning code be prepared that is consistent with section 136 14 of the site plan review law. I have dealt with this schedule of zoning regulation since I've been on the zoning board of appeals starting in 2011 and it has been clear that in the I1 and I2 when you look at this schedule of district zoning regulations, it says required site plan review and approval by planning board zoning board of appeals for I1 for all except principle uses so you go back to the first box which has all the principle uses and to me it's pretty clear for all except principle uses. In the I2 the same thing, when you look in the last column it says for all except principle uses you go back to the first column you look at the principle uses so I'm not really sure why the wording is avoid confusion it's pretty clear to me. The other issues that I have with this resolution is the town board further directs the town's building inspector who is charged with the general and executive administration of the zoning code section 135 12 subsection A to work with the town attorney and our planning board ZBA attorney to determine if any projects requiring site plan review since 2011 have not received necessary approvals from the planning board/ZBA. It further says upon a determination that a project requiring site plan review has not received necessary approvals from the planning board/ZBA the town board encourages the building inspector to refer the project to the planning board/ZBA for the same. Now if I was an applicant in 2011 or from 2011 until 2025 and I was working off of the zoning code and I was in full compliance with the zoning code I don't think that this board should be able to make those people come back before the planning zoning board of appeals for a site plan review. Their application when it was approved was specific about this law and this schedule.
Stott: I would also you know say again, so people who don't know what he's referring to you look at the Coeymans code you know schedule district and zoning and you look at for example you go through the zones, like RA residential agricultural and it says required site plan review and it says for all special permits. Then you go to you go down to B1 general business for all uses you need a site plan review you go again to like R1, R2, R3, R4, and it says for all special use permits for all uses for all uses and then you get to plan commercial and it says for all uses you need a site plan review and then you go to industrial soon as you get to industrial it's you know and again industrial the primary uses are things like on manufacturing, assembly and processing facility research and development laboratories wholesaling with storage barge and ship terminals, transportation terminals, building material, plants farming and timber operations trucking terminal fuel storage terminal, so these are the principal uses but for the section where it says site plan review required it says for all except principal uses and then the same thing- I'm not done- the same thing says you know for I2 industrial for all except principal uses. So, if you want to open a coffee shop on Main Street you have a site plan review but if you want to open industrial site you don't need your exempt except for I mean to me so that's what you're involved with…
Schmitt: So fine if you want to take that position and you want to change the zoning code and you want to make it so that for all uses a site plan is required in the industrial zone. 
Stott: yes 
Schmitt: Fine we can consider that but I am not willing to consider the fact that you now or we as the board has the power to go back to the building code enforcer or the building code inspector and have him start going through applications from 2011 to 2025 and say okay well this was in the industrial zone and they never had site plan review so therefore they have to now come back for site plan review if we don't like it we're going to that's ridiculous they followed the law they followed the code that was in effect when they filed their application so again if you want to change we can have that discussion but to open this can of worms up and to allow the building code inspector to then figure out whether he wants to bring these people back in when they were approved based upon the code.
Hotaling: What not to mention what happened to our planning and zoning board you know down the road.
Mr. Collins:  how long has this been on the table when did you guys see this?
Schmitt: We talked about site plan review
Mr. Reilly: 8 weeks ago maybe
Schmitt: but when I got this resolution, I got it yesterday at 2.30 in the afternoon 
Mr. Reilly: we circulated it we talked about site plan 
Schmitt: I have not seen a resolution
Mr. Reilly: I don't want to get into the weeds but I mean the draft of the resolution has been out there for really?
Schmitt: we talked about it I did not see a resolution until 2:30 yesterday afternoon maybe around 4:30 before but …
Mr. Laraway: Just to be clear there are numerous other things within your zoning law that require industrial uses to go for a site plan. If we subdivide our property we have to come for a site plan and that includes reviewing the building, the fire sprinklers, the storm water everything you've done our storm water permit requires us to follow those same laws but to now say by resolution if three or more of you vote for it that you're going to go back to 2011 and change the law because you think maybe somebody made a mistake you are now looking back 15 years and interpreting what the people sitting before you 15 years ago wrote on a piece of paper and no one has questioned or even discussed until 8 weeks ago. 
Donnelly: That's a very good point why from 2011 to now, what happened in that time that no one enforced this? 
Mr. Laraway: Enforced what? that document says that it's not required never had to.
Donnelly:  I'm just thinking of the sewer of Riverview because when I ask our chief operator where is this all coming from? He goes, I have no idea where this water comes from that was put in the wastewater going into Riverview
Mr. Laraway: The sanitary sewer from the industrial park?
Donnelly: Yeah, that goes into Riverview 
Mr. Powell: I'm going to step in here as an old man
Donnelly:  thank you 
Mr. Powell: The storm water on Riverview has been shooting out into the Coeymans Creek since I was a boy. It goes in unfiltered; every town board has had the opportunity to do something about and every town board has looked the other way. I'll be frank with you, have got people in this town who are desperate to get trucks off their road, you have two companies that you're dealing with market capitalization over 60 billion dollars don't you think it would be a wise thing to do to take care of those people who are scared of their children getting run over instead of frankly dicking around with this? 
Donnelly: Is actually meant to so, 
Mr. Laraway: Back to the sanitary sewer
Donnelly: This is actually meant to get those trucks off the road I was speaking with Heidelberg and Amrize today at the quarry I didn't see you there so we are working on this and we've been working on it for two years were you there? Well, I just don't recognize you.
Mr. Laraway: you guised this under some fame mistake that maybe somebody made 15 years ago but you just said it you're doing this to try and take trucks off the road that resolution doesn't say anything about that I don't understand.
Donnelly: There's no site plan review for tens of thousands of trucks annually. 
Mr. Laraway: What do you mean there's no site plan review that sanitary sewer that you just brought up that was reviewed as part of the subdivision application for the Coeymans Industrial Park it was reviewed and approved by Albany County Department of Health before we installed it. It was dedicated to your village or your town sewer department all of those things happened. We followed the rules we built it correctly and we followed the rules as the town had laid them out to go back and say that 15 years of our work is going to be reviewed and many other peoples. Are you going to have Lafarge tear their plant down? That was built since 2011 so is your code enforcement officer going to crawl through their plant and you're going to shut down their enterprise because you're trying to take trucks off the road?
Donnelly: Well, if it was built correctly what would be the issue with our code enforcement. 
Mr. Laraway: But you're going to make them spend hundreds of thousands if not millions of dollars going through a retroactive site plan process that can't be legal, none of this is legal.
Mrs. Collins: They're going to leave they're going to leave our community and things like Trish just said, she relies on donations from these big companies for our children in this community.
Donnelly: They're not going anywhere.
Mrs. Collins: Are you joking?
Donnelly: They're not going anywhere. 
Mrs. Collins: They pay for free thanksgiving dinners that are getting passed out at shop and save they pay for children that need help for Christmas. 
Mr. Collins: So, you guys know better than the last 15 years, you guys know better?
Donnelly: We know better to have conversations 
Mr. Laraway: But you're not having a conversation 
Schmitt: There's a resolution on the table technically the public doesn't even get a say right now, this isn't a public hearing this is discussion.
(Inaudible comments)
Schmitt: This is solely for the resolution you know me I'll let everybody talk
Donnelly: Because you were not even living in this state when the time that that sewer main was built.
Donnelly: It's great that you're bringing this up
Mr. Laraway: Ask the question before you put a resolution to try and shut our business down that's what you're doing
Mrs. Collins: Mr. Stott is a code guru now because notice every question gets answered by Mr. Stott so he's directing the town attorney to look into all these code and zoning laws that's what's going on let’s call a spade a spade.
 Mr. Collins: And that's not a conversation when you put a resolution up to vote and without a discussion that's not a conversation. You were going to vote on it two seconds until Nick got up. That's not a conversation this is an abuse of power, direct abuse of power that you guys have the right to go back 15 years and say this was done wrong you're going to come back to us now. 
Mr. Laraway: So, let me just ask the question of your attorney all of the people if you pass this resolution and you sick your code enforcement officer on trying to shut down Enterprise does not every one of those businesses have the right to claim detrimental reliance because they followed the law and you now changed it on them and tried to retroactively change their business?
Mr. Reilly: I would submit that they did not follow the law because they did not follow the site plan review
Mr. Laraway: But the law says… 
Mr. Reilly: If you could just let me continue, I would also note that when this was enacted in 2011 there were repeated public meetings at which representatives of carver companies opposed the local law because it was going to make them as an industrial use go through site plan review. I mean that's reflected in the minutes. 
Mr. Laraway: But we followed the process as it was given to us by code enforcement since then the town board, the planning board we have been part of probably 30 plus site plan reviews over the last 15 years that were enacted because of other uses because of subdivisions, because of changes. But to now say that you are opening up everyone in this town in the industrial zone to scrutiny over the last 15 years because you think maybe somebody did this by passing a resolution to change the law like there's just so many holes in what you're doing right here I would suggest that you reconsider and if this is the position you want to take you do it the right way.
Mrs. Grogan: I'm Flabbergasted, Mike, I would ask you if it's possible to table this for the simple fact as the liaison with the planning board could it be looked into first to see who this would affect how many businesses this would affect before you go opening up a can of worms. So, before this continues can this be withdrawn pulled, tabled and find out the information first before we do this. This entire meeting here tonight has been attacking businesses. This entire meeting. Everything that comes through the planning board when it comes to businesses, I can only speak on behalf of the two years- three, we try to do everything in our power to dot our i's cross our t's so that we avoid litigation. I can't even imagine the litigation that's going to come out of this. So please all five of you up their table this see how big this is because this is huge.
Schmitt: I'll make a motion to withdraw this resolution
Donnelly: I don't know about withdraw but I'd make a motion to table it, I mean any further discussion
Stott: Well can I respond to Ms. Grogan? Ms. Grogan I can assure you might be perceiving it as attacking industry but I would say it's more about trying to find a balance, trying to follow the comprehensive plan that was created in 2020 and everybody we've heard it for the last several years and you guys even more but it seems to be one of the biggest issues with the town is trying to find a balance between industry and residences so we're trying to find that balance and where there were things that maybe led industry to creep over that line we're trying to possibly find solutions so that we can live cohesively together. Now I will agree maybe going back 15 years so be it, but I also think if that wasn't in there if that clause 2 was taken out…..
Mr. Reilly: I mean I did contemplate some of these sorts of arguments being made if you eliminated 1, 3 and 4 clause 2 essentially asks the building inspector to come back to us with that input of what did not get site plan review that I would say should have but I'd leave that to his determination 
Mrs. Grogan: And can I ask you honestly what is that going to do? What is that going to prove? What is that going to none of you sitting on that board myself, Al Collins none of us had anything to do with that. I understand your position on bringing this forward to make sure going forward it's done correctly but none of us are at any responsibility for this and if it is not harming anybody, it is not causing anything trickle down why? 
Mr. Stott: How do you know it's not harming anybody if no site plan review is done? 
Mrs. Collins: Because we're living it 
Mr. Stott: We get a lot of complaints too as a town board members.
Donnelly: All we hear is truck traffic the number one thing that I've heard since I moved back here in 2019 because I wasn't here when the trucks started to go from what was it 2011 when they went through 15 trucks coming out of Amrize in the town board. 
Mr. Reilly: In the early 2000 Amrize then I think Lafarge submitted an application that would have required or would have generated an additional maybe dozen trucks to sort of ingress and egress onto 9W. The town's response at the time was a traffic study that was probably more than 200 pages and so there was a time when the town was looking at this. For whatever reason over the past several years they have not. This is I believe an appropriate interpretation of the current sort of state of the law but ultimately, it's a policy decision for this board to decide how you want to proceed or not.
Mr. Laraway: So just to ask a question about the truck traffic, I'm here not on behalf of Amrize or Heidelberg but I know a little bit about it. That quarry has been around for longer than many of us have been alive, they have been quarrying hundreds of thousands if not millions of tons of rock out of that quarry to make cement and to sell through different processes over the last 50 plus years. What in this law that you are changing would change the trucks coming out of the quarry and delivering aggregate? That use hasn't changed in 50 years they have done more trucks or less trucks and now it is in a state of higher, but none of what you have on this piece of paper from what I heard would change Heidelberg and or Amrize's ability to quarry rocks in the quarry and truck them onto the road. Site plan review wouldn't apply to that because it's an existing use for the last 40 years.
Mr. Reilly: It's an expansion of the use and it was in fact an expansion because in 2016 and or 2020 they actually had to go to the state of New York and get an expansion of their mining use permit to be able to do what they are doing now. The paperwork from the state of New York that granted them that expanded mining use permit made clear that it did not relieve them from the obligation to go through any applicable local approvals.
Mr. Laraway: Certainly, but the use didn't change. So, what would trigger a site plan? 
Mr. Reilly: The expansion would. 
Mrs. Collins: So that's what you are going after.
Mr. Stott: We are not going after anybody. We are trying to maintain..
Mrs. Collins: It's so obvious.
Mr. Stott: Mrs. Collins, here's the thing; You live on 143. We've talked. We've had meetings with people from the village, people from Mountain Road Extension who get hundreds of trucks a day. 
Mr. Collins: Mike, she's well aware of the trucks.
Mr. Stott: I know but she's seen her own effort. I'm trying to solve a problem, Zach Collins, regarding truck traffic. All we're saying is for example like they expanded their business. They expanded their truck traffic. They should have probably come up to the zoning planning board to have a site plan review because they are expanding their business. To see the effects on their residences.
(Inaudible comments)
Mr. Collins: in 2016 they expanded their business. So, you want to go back and say everybody who made a decision before then, 15 years ago, I'm getting affected by it now and everybody else is going to pay. Those are the two things that you put up on the docket tonight. That is a shame. 
Mr. Stott: You know and I know, Zach. That's false. 
Mr. Collins: Really? 
Mr. Stott: For somebody who wrote the comprehensive plan, my friend, you better practice what you preach.
Mrs. Collins:  The comprehensive plan was in 2020.Five years ago. It's actually from 2006 and then there were amendments in 2020.
Mrs. Tanner: Why can't you go back through from 2011 pick up all the things that are wrong and from here on they can't do that.
Mrs. Collins: You have to do it moving forward. You can't go backwards.
Mr. Laraway: And just to reiterate it one last time. If you think something is wrong that is part of your law and you want to change it, there's a process to change your law. You can't just start throwing resolutions out because you think something that somebody did 15 years ago or 5 years ago or 8 years ago doesn't match your agenda. You don't get to just pass resolutions to change the law. That's the way this system works. 
Donnelly: The point has been made that the law was put in place in 2011. So, whatever happened from 2011, whoever didn't enforce it, whomever was sitting on the board and didn't say 150 Carver trucks at the time, now Heidelberg, it's only 20% according to their numbers, 20-25%. There's still 75% trucks, saw trucks coming out of the industrial park. There's what, 19? How many tenants are at the industrial park? 
Mr. Laraway: More than that. 
Donnelly: More than 19? 
Mrs. Laraway: Yes.
Donnelly: All of them, they get heavy truck traffic?
Mr. Laraway: No. 
Donnelly: Half of them? 
Mr. Laraway: Some. 
Donnelly: So how many trucks are coming out of there?
Mr. Laraway: There's all sorts of different things. We also did a full environmental impact study for the Port Second Dock and the Poway Project. We spent 37 months and 15 days going through that process with DEC as lead agency. They reviewed everything, they approved what we did, and we got approval from the town board as part of that and the planning board. All of that is approved. 
Donnelly: What year was that? 
Mr. Laraway: 2022, in January we got that approval.
Donnelly: Were you on the board in 2022?
 Mrs. Grogan: I was the chairman.
Mr. Laraway: Well, no, the 2022 one was complete. You were the chairman on 2024.
Schmitt: I was the chairman for the 2022. And I had numerous discussions with DEC.
Mr. Collins:  Hang on, real quick. We don't think a resolution this heavy deserves a public hearing? Whoa. That is scary, guys. This deserves three public hearings. Three public hearings. Did you go back that far? To go back 15 years and give you guys that power and you don't think there's a public hearing? 
Donnelly: We're going over the town board that came before us that made that law. We've made that point several times tonight. They should try to understand that that already exists.
Mr. Laraway:  You should try and understand how many site plan reviews we went through before you claimed that we had none. 
Mrs. Grogan: So, Mr. Donnelly, can I ask you a question and I really hope I can get an answer? Living in this town for over 20 years, sitting on the planning board, usually change gets made when there's an issue. Truck traffic on my road at 55 miles an hour. I came before this board three times to get my speed zone changed. What was presented to this board that brought all of this up? 
Donnelly: Truck traffic.
Mrs. Grogan: No, no, no. You brought that up. You brought the truck traffic up by doing the resolution. No, no, no, no. You brought the truck traffic up at a couple meetings ago by putting a resolution for it to change the limit on a road. That's how that truck traffic came about. And I don't disagree with you. Truck traffic is an issue. And I thought this board was trying to do something with truck traffic alone. This is not truck traffic. This is not just truck traffic. I'm reading this. This is not truck traffic. So, again, I would love to know what resident, what business owner, what person came to your board and said this is an issue. Can you look into it? How did this come about? What person brought this to this board to look into this?
Donnelly: The residents of the town.
Stott: No person brought to the board.
Mrs. Grogan: That's what I'm asking for. What person brought this board? He's saying the residents.
Mr. Reilly: I raised it with the board. 
Mrs. Grogan: You're saying the residents. I'd like to know.
Donnelly: We bring them to the proper department. This happened to be a legal department issue. We had them look into it. They found issues. Now we're having the discussion. 
Mrs. Grogan: This is not a discussion. You are getting ready to vote on this and I can't even tell you what you're going to do to my board, the members on my board, businesses that are in this room. So, this is not a discussion. This was not a workshop. This is not a public hearing for that. This is let's take action and make this a thing. And I don't disagree, Mr. Riley. I don't disagree with any of you. I don't. Take this, rip it up, throw it out, and come back to the table when you can have open discussions with me as the chair, the other members on the board, the people this is going to affect. Please. This is insanity. You want to punish and penalize businesses and other people for 15 years ago? That's insane.
Town Clerk: I find it interesting that you're going to go back 15 years and penalize businesses, but you won't go back to January and fix my deputy's resolution. We understand what's more important now. 
Mr. Laraway: From our perspective, most of the people if not all of the people here are here because of the public hearing that you scheduled to discuss agricultural terminal construction. I truly believe, and I want this on the record, that none of us would have been here if it wasn't for this, and you guys may have just passed this resolution without any input from all the people that you were trying to attack. 
Schmitt: I would have still had my comments. 
Stott: Steve would have definitely commented on it.
Mr. Laraway: I'm sure you commented on everything tonight, but at the end of the day, this was done underhandedly. You guys keep using the word loophole as to us using the zoning law, but what you did here was underhanded. You did not public notice this. You are trying to attack us for the last 15 years of our development in this town, and that is not right. 
Hotaling: Mr. Laraway, I appreciate you showing up because I actually appreciate you getting the information regarding how the process should work, and regardless of that it may have been done wrong in 2020, this board shouldn't be doing it wrong just because it was done wrong in 2020, so I appreciate you bringing that to us. I am not a supporter of the transportation terminal definition thing as well, and I appreciate everybody coming out and expressing their opinions. I also think that we should possibly have some type of... our ethics committee should look at whether or not we should have a member recuse himself from voting on it, so I think as a board we should look at that. 
Stott: Are you referring to me Ron?
Hotaling:  Yes, because it's been brought up. 
Mrs. Collins: I agree.
Stott: Mr. Reilly, let me ask you a question. Legally, is that something somebody recuses himself for? 
Mr. Reilly: No. 
Hotaling: Because the property borders Mr. Powell's. Again, I think that we should at least have it looked at because if we're going to get sued, I want to make sure we're getting sued for the right reasons, not because we did it wrong. 
Stott: Well, thank you, Mr. Hotaling. Ms. Grogan, I do agree. I'll second. I think we need a second for your motion. So, I will second it. And again, I feel we definitely can look at that. I mean, as far as my own personal opinion, as far as the exceptions for the principal uses, I think I'm not for those being exceptions. I think if you're going to have special use permits for the other zones, then surely why wouldn't you have it for industrial? But as far as the part two, yeah, we can talk about it. Sure. I mean, it's okay. 
Mrs. Grogan: And that's a fair statement, saying that maybe there should be a site plan review, but to sit here and put people on high alarm that you want to look back 15 years ago, that's just wrong.
Donnelly: Once again, we're just looking at the board in 2011, the laws that they passed, the way that they were going about protecting the comp plan from 2006. 
Mrs. Grogan: You're doing more. You were going to vote on it.
Mr. Laraway: And you weren't planning on having a discussion. It was just unfortunate that we were here to talk about something else, and it turned into a discussion. 
Donnelly: It's not that unfortunate. It's actually really good. 
Mr. Laraway: Correct. But you're sitting there saying it was a discussion. It was not a discussion. The discussion was the public hearing. The open business is the discussion. The resolutions are things you generally plan on passing. You don't usually table something unless you're planning on voting on it and voting in the affirmative. And I would request on behalf of Carver Companies and every other industrial user in the town of Coeymans that you look at changing any of these things written in the zoning law without going through the process of a public hearing and consulting the planning board.
Donnelly: Well, we're absolutely going to have more discussions with Carver Companies here in the town, with the PBCPA, as you requested. 
Schmitt: So, there's a motion to table, a second.
Donnelly: All in favor? 
All: Aye.
Donnelly: Upcoming meetings. November 24th is our next town board meeting. That's a Monday because of Thanksgiving. PBZBA has their next meeting on November 25th and December 24th at 7 p.m. And we have another town board meeting on December 11th.
Schmitt: And just a reminder that the November 24th meeting is a Monday night meeting.
Donnelly: Oh, also December 9th, did we mail down for the town village? 
Schmitt: I'll get back to you tomorrow.
Town Clerk: I'm sorry, what was that?
Stott:  It's the joint meeting. Oh, we have to talk to the village. Possibly December 9th. If it's accepted by them, I'll email you. 
Public Hearing Comment.
Baker: If I could just make a suggestion, once you're done with public hearing comments, maybe close that. And I'll make it quick. Again, right, Lukens is here, Collins is here, Biers is here, Mike Stanton's here, right, all these people from the Howell, they all have humongous farms. Successful farms, they've been in farming forever. I'll give you two examples of how, if you guys pass this law, it's going to cripple these farms because it's not an accessory use. Dave Flach's farm, do you guys know where it is? Does anybody on the board know where it is? They do motorcycle racing there, right? Why do they do that? Because the farms are dying. So if you change this law, he's done, right? Buck's Ranch Road, do you guys know where that is? Right, they have a little farm up there. They try to have concerts up there. The planning board put them through their ringer, put it in an emergency road, have a nurse on standby, bring in 35 bathrooms. All they want to do is have a concert there. 
Bruno: It's a large concert, large. 
Baker: They're trying to sustain their farms and stuff. This will cripple them. So, please, do not vote this through. This will cripple people and the ability for these farms to expand and do something different. It will cripple them. And again, I'm sure Stephen Flach will be in your office saying, hey, what are you doing? They run motorcycle races up there on the weekends. That's their, you know, revenue. So, if you make that agriculture only, motorcycle races, not agriculture. Thank you. 
Schmitt: No, I honestly think that we should keep it open. 
Baker: Well, these guys got public comment. That's my position.
Schmitt: We can keep this public hearing open and we can continue it again at the next meeting. Another meeting. Well, we still have to act on that.

Public Comment:
Good evening. I'm not sure where to start. My name is Scott Olson. I'm an attorney with Young Summer. We recently submitted, I don't know if you have the material, I represent the Dorsey’s. We submitted a request for a local law that would amend the zoning ordinance, which obviously has come up earlier. And I heard Mr. Hotaling’ s comments and some others about why do this piecemeal. I understand it. I would hope this board would consider it because we're not asking for a new use to be added or... we're just asking basically; can the town board consider changing the law to add definitions to terms that are already in the law because it's creating some ambiguity especially for my clients. They... Sorry, what? Oh, sorry. I thought you had a question. So as you may be aware, my clients, they own the property at 880 Bridge Street. That front's in the town of Bethlehem. That part of the property is in the town of Coeymans. They pay taxes to both towns for each use. The property used to be owned and operated by... what was it? Oaken? So obviously you know what that is more than I do. So, in the back part of the property, they have a barn. They started to renovate the barn under the misunderstanding that they didn't need a building permit. Long story short, they did go and apply for the building permit. I think maybe the building permit got filled out a little. The application incorrectly, It got denied. Unfortunately, I just said to them. Then I got involved and I said, hey, just preserve your right. File an appeal to the Planning Board ZBA. They did. We went through that process and as of Monday, the ZBA basically upheld the appeal. We think what the Dorsey’s want to do on the property though falls under the permitted uses. It's in the RA district. General farming, residential facilities, riding academies. Those are three permitted uses in that district. What they're looking to do, some traditional farming. Horses, cows, pigs. I think everybody agrees that's farming. Harvest crops. They also want to diversify the use. I think you've heard a lot of comments about farming and how it's a dying breed. It is. Last year alone in the state, 2100 farms went under, they went away because they couldn't support themselves. New York State basically acknowledges that farms need to diversify. They call it agri-tourism. Have people come for pick your own things, hay rides, farmer's markets. New York State now says that should be included in general farming. That may not be traditional farming but it's kind of the new modern farming because if we don't have that, farms will continue to die. Across the country, in this state, in Coeymans, everywhere. They want to do some stuff like have farmer's markets at the barn. They want to do food farm to table where they basically partner with other farms in the area. Showcase their products. Have dinners there with those farm products. Again, that's part of agri-tourism. They also want to use the barn for farm themed celebrations, weddings, birthday parties, that sort of stuff. We believe that and I believe after reading your code they could do that today because I would ask it falls under recreational facility. But then you say, well what is recreational facility? I can tell you, I don't know, there are 50 people in this room, maybe 50 people will say 50 different things. What we're trying to do, what we're asking you, could you please consider providing a definition for general farming and for recreational facilities. I wrote it up so that it's pretty broad and I think recreational facility is pretty broad. So that it would cover what they want to do, what a lot of people want to do. I've taken the liberty to at least propose a draft of the two definitions that we're looking at. So that's what we're here to talk about. I believe that Dorsey's were here last month or so. I could not be here. But I appreciate the supervisor inviting us to come and talk about this tonight. And I am certainly happy to answer any questions that you may have if you have any.
Schmitt: Well Mr. Olson, I do appreciate you coming today, especially at such short notice. I did see the email chain with the supervisor where it was encouraged or you said that you could be available during our next meeting. So, I do appreciate you coming here today. I also do appreciate you providing us with a draft and some language for us to work with. I'll be honest, I didn't have time this afternoon to dive deeply into your proposal but I certainly will look at it and look at it thoroughly.
Mr. Olsen: We appreciate that. Thank you. Thanks again. Will the board be in touch with us. there is a meeting on the 24th? I cannot be here but I guess I can contact you, the supervisor, if it's okay.
Donnelly: Yeah, this sounds like another conversation with the Planning Board, the Board of Appeals, sort of chiming in and letting us know where they're at. Yeah, well I'm sorry, where they're at is that they upheld the denial. But I think that if this board wants to take this up, I do agree. I checked quickly what some gentlemen said earlier about that the planning board would have to give a recommendation prior to any type of public hearing. But that's what we're hoping for. We're hoping that the board will at least entertain it, send it to the planning board and have a public hearing. Because without having definitions, it creates some ambiguity. It creates a situation where existing landowners and prospective landowners can't predict what's allowable in that zoning district. And that's when the Dorsey's purchased the property, farming, and with the modern trend of agritourism, that sort of stuff. They thought we could do this without a problem and then I think they can, but we are where we are and I would just also add that it is consistent with your comprehensive plan. There is a section in there that talks about agritourism. It also talks about a lot in your economic development strategy plan 2007. It talks a lot about that. So, we think it's consistent. Thank you.
Mrs. Grogan: And to the board, this is the case I was telling you about that we as a planning board just denied, which is why our entire all of the zoning needs to be redone. For this reason alone, their case that they brought, and our planning board did let them know to try that use variance, so simultaneously tried.
Mr. Olsen:  I hear what you're saying. As an attorney who spent way too many years in zoning, use variances are next to impossible unless you're a tower developer because it's impossible not to get one. But I hear what you're saying. The only thing I would say to that is yes, maybe your zoning needs to be rehauled. I'm not going to tell you it does or doesn't. All I would say is hopefully maybe you could do an exception for this request because it's just adding a definition to terms that exist. You're not changing uses and a rezoning or zoning amendment. It takes a long time. I'm just listening to things here. You're looking at three years if that, if not more.
So, we would just request we would hope that you may at least consider accepting us from that long process and maybe doing a local law. But thank you. 
Mrs. Collins: Can I just point out going to the public hearing real quick that this is a perfect example of why the language is so broad because farms need to do these types of things to survive. And some farms might do a venue or a farm to table. Some farms might do trucking. Some farms might do other things. It depends on what equipment you have and what space you have. But this is a perfect example of why narrowing the language down is going to make it so much harder on these farms to stay functioning. And that local law you're presenting will decimate the Dorsey's for the plans that they have for the future of their property.
Donnelly: So, it's good that we're having this very large discussion between industry and farming and as Mr. Laraway pointed out, commercial in between. Is there any more public comment? 
Baker: Going back to the doctor's office you guys indicated that there was a $20,000 change order for the cable. Is that part of the procurement policy? Maybe you should have got a second quote for that? 
Donnelly: No, we're going through AOW. We looked into that. 
Baker: Because what if they said 50 grand or 70? Would you guys have said, okay, go ahead, and do it? No.
Mr. Reilly: It would be a change order to their contract that this board would have to approve or not.
Baker:  Don't you think it requires a second quote though? I mean, why wouldn't you ask, hey, can we get another quote? It's 20 grand. No? No, Linda?
Bruno: I didn't think so, it's Edmonds. We want Edmonds. 
Baker: I mean, usually when you're doing work like that, they come to you and say, hey, it's 50 grand more. You're going to say, okay, here we go. 
Bruno: Well, the next thing is we tell people, no, you can't use your computer or your phone there because we're only looking. 
Baker: I'm not saying that. But that wouldn't be it. No, that wouldn't be it. You'd say, you know what? I have another cable contractor. Let's get a quote from State Telephone. That's what you guys are responsible to do. You're spending taxpayer money.
Donnelly: Yeah, and we've saved $160,000 so far by using AOW and LaBerge. 
Baker: That's great. Now they're coming to you saying we want 20 grand.
Donnelly: Right. Well, we're also under a deadline. 
Baker: If somebody came to your house and said it's 20 grand extra, would you say, okay? 
Donnelly: Correct, but you need to know we're under a deadline.
Baker: You set the deadline, not me. You didn't. 
Donnelly: No, our lease agreement sets the deadline.
Baker: I'm just saying, don't you guys think that it's worthy of getting a second opinion, a second quote? I got three quotes for the trucks. I get quotes for the mowers. I get quotes all the time. 
 Unknown: When is the deadline? 
Donnelly: The 31st of December.
Baker: December 8th.
Donnelly: We're going to move in on the 8th. We still have to move all the stuff and put everything and hook it all up. Very tight deadline.
Further public comment? Public hearing still open? Anybody? 
Mr. Reilly: There is a recommended couple observations. One, if at any point you do decide you want to proceed, we're going to have to schedule another public hearing anyways. If in the interim you want to keep the current public hearing open, I would just recommend a motion, I guess, just to formalize that. 
Schmitt: I suggest we keep the public hearing open. I don't know what the rest of the board thinks. I second that. I'll make a motion that we leave the public hearing open for the local law number one of 2025. The proposed local law number one of 2025 open until our next meeting, which is November 24th at 6 o'clock.
Stott: I'll second that.
Donnelly: All in favor?
 Aye.
Mr. Reilly:  If I could just clarify, it's going to be open through you closing it at that next meeting. It's not like it's in the way it was worded. It's open until the meeting, but it'll be through whenever you close it. 
Mrs. Grogan: That was my next question for you. If you're leaving this public hearing open and then you're going to close it, you are going to repost a new public hearing? 
Mr. Reilly: Absolutely.
Thank you.
Mr. Hotaling:  Repost the new public hearing for the 24th? 
Mrs. Grogan: No, for... When we decide to go back and forth? Yeah. Exactly.
Donnelly: Okay. Any further discussion? I'd like to make a motion to go to the executive Session...
Mr. Reilly: I would just add a comment once that motion is made.
Donnelly: For legal advice on a FOIL appeal. 
Mr. Reilly: I would also just suggest that if we could, I'd like to have a discussion about two contract negotiations and a personnel matter. There'll be no action on the contract negotiations or the personnel matter. The board will need to take an action in connection with the FOIL appeal. There's a hard deadline for that and you need to act on it.
Schmitt: And what specifically under New York State Public Officers Law Article 7 Section 105 are we going into executive session? 
Mr. Reilly: For the two things I just mentioned would be contract negotiations and personnel matter. As to the FOIL appeal, it's really to receive legal advice from your town attorney which you can always do. In fact, you could do even without an executive session, but that's what we'll talk about in there.
Mr. Laraway: Okay. For the audience's clarification, there's no more discussion about land use? 
Mr. Reilly: None whatsoever. The only action item will be on the FOIL appeal which we have to take action on.
Mr. Laraway: Thank you. Have a good night, everyone.
Stott: I second that.
Donnelly: All in favor? 
Aye 				8:46p.m.
Motion to Adjourn Executive Session was made by Council member Schmitt and Seconded by Council member Bruno. APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – ABSENT 0– SO MOVED   9:06pm

Motion to Return from Executive Session was made by Council member Schmitt and Seconded by Council member Donnelly. APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – ABSENT 0– SO MOVED   9:10 pm

** A Decision was made to uphold the FOIL Appeal; all were in favor. The Town Attorney will draft a letter for review by the board.

Motion to Adjourn was made by Council member Donnelly and Seconded by Council member Schmitt. APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – ABSENT 0– SO MOVED   9:11 pm


Respectfully Submitted,			 

[image: ]
___________________________
Candace McHugh, Town Clerk 
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